
ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 
 
CASE NUMBER: C14H-07-0005 HLC DATE:  February 26, 2007 
    March 26, 2007 
    April 23, 2007 
 ZAP DATE:  June 5, 2007 
    June 19, 2007 
     
APPLICANT:  Historic Landmark Commission 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Bull House 
 
WATERSHED:  Shoal Creek 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  2213 Windsor Road, East 
 
ZONING FROM: SF-3 TO:  SF-3-H 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the proposed zoning change, 
but understands that it may be necessary to deconstruct the house to repair structural 
problems.  Staff recommends that the applicant rebuild the house after stabilization, 
possibly further down the slope to allow for the construction of additions on the Windsor 
Road, East side, preserving the historic materials and facades, and the view of the house 
from Parkway. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:  February 26, 2007:  Initiated a historic 
zoning case.  March 26, 2007:  Postponed the case to April 23, 2007.  April 23, 2007:  
Recommended a zoning change from single family residence (SF-3) district to single family 
residence – Historic (SF-3-H) combining district zoning. 
 
ZONING AND PLATTING COMMISSION ACTION:  June 5, 2007:  Postponed the case to 
June 19, 2007.  June 19, 2007:  
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  The Bull House is listed in the Comprehensive Cultural 
Resources Survey (1984) but without a priority for research.  The house is contributing to 
the Old West Austin National Register Historic District. 
CITY COUNCIL DATE:  June 21, 2007   ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:  Old Enfield Homeowners Association 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
The ca. 1934 Bull House was renovated around 1965 to install a central heat and air 
conditioning system; installation of the system required excavation under the house which 
caused significant structural damage.  The facades of the house are intact but the house is 

Page 1 of 27 



collapsing inwardly as the foundation for the slabs has been excavated and no longer supports 
the weight of the house.  Staff believes that the house has architectural and historical merit 
and recommends deconstruction and reconstruction to stabilize the house using historic 
materials; proposed additions should be built on the Windsor Road, East side of the house, so 
that the Parkway façade remains intact.  To accommodate the proposed additions, the location 
of the house may have to be moved down the slope from its current location so that the 
Parkway facades and historic appearance of the house remain. 
 
Architecture: 
One-story with a raised basement wing-and-gable plan stone- and brick-veneered residence 
with a composition shingle roof, metal-framed casement windows, and round-arched 
arcaded wall at the raised basement.  Howard Bull obtained a building permit in 1965 to 
construct a frame addition to the side of the residence and extend the garage. 
Historical Associations: 
The house was built by Howard Westfall for E.B and Annie Louise Snead in 1934, according 
to a mechanic’s lien filed August 29, 1934 for a 10-room stone dwelling house for $4,500.  
Architectural details on the house may have come from UT’s Old Main Building, but this 
cannot be proven.  The Sneads purchased the property from the Westenfield Development 
Company on August 8, 1934, although it is not clear if they ever lived in the house.  The 
first known resident was Adolph Goldmann, who moved here from the Alamo Hotel around 
1936.  Goldmann was the manager of Nelson Davis and Son, a large wholesale produce 
company (now the Spaghetti Warehouse building at 4th and Colorado Streets).  Goldmann 
lived here only for a short time; by 1940, the house was owned and occupied by Alfred C. 
and Edna H. Bull.  Alfred Bull was the vice-president of American National Bank, having 
joined the bank in 1936.  According to the 1930 U.S. Census, Alfred and Edna Bull were 
living on W. 23rd Street; he listed his occupation as a bank vice-president.  By 1945, the 
house was rented to Mrs. Sophia R. Lockart, a widow with two children.  Howard W. and 
Sue Bull purchased the house before 1947 and remained residents until 2004, when Mr. 
Bull passed away at the age of 104.  Howard Bull was an insurance agent who also was a 
member and chaired the City Board of Equalization in the mid-1950s.  The 1930 U.S. 
Census shows Howard and Sue Bull renting (an un-numbered) house on Northwood Road; 
he listed his occupation as an insurance agent. 
PARCEL NO.:  01130104040000 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  Lot 25, and the Southwest Triangle of Lot 24, less the Northeast 
triangle of Lot 25, Enfield D. 
  
ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $12,627 (owner-occupied); city portion: $2,250. 
 
APPRAISED VALUE:  $1,015,930 
 
PRESENT USE:  Vacant 
 
CONDITION:  Fair 
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PRESENT OWNER 
Carlos Tames 
3111 Glenview Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78703 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1934 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  Garage built 1965. 
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  E.B. Snead (1934) 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS: Contributing to the Old West Austin National 
Register Historic District. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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2213 WINDSOR ROAD EAST 

 
West façade 

 
North façade showing garage and arcaded raised basement 
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West and south facades 

 

 
East façade (Parkway) 
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East façade (Parkway) showing round-arched arcaded raised basement, tile work and 

casement windows 

 
Detail of stone veneer and brackets, west façade 
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View of underside of glass-brick paving in garage built ca. 1965, showing deterioration of 
steel beams 
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View of excavation under house for the ca. 1965 installation of central heat and air. 
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OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
2213 Windsor Road, East 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
February, 2007 
 
 
1987  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  Retired 
 
1981  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  Retired 
 
1975  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  Retired 
 
1969  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 

Retired 
 
1963  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1958  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  Chairman, City Board of Equalization 
 
1954  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1952  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 
  Member, City Board of Equalization 
 
1949  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 

Member, City Board of Equalization 
 
1947  Howard W. and Sue A. Bull, owners 

No occupation listed 
 
1944-45 Mrs. Sophia R. Lockart, renter 

Widow, Robert Lockart 
No occupation listed 
Also listed are Bob R. Lockart, U.S. Army, and Live W. Lockart, a student. 

 
NOTE:  Howard and Sue Bull are listed as living at 1415 Preston Avenue; he was 
the proprietor of an insurance and mortgage loan firm located at 203 Capitol 
National Bank Building. 

 
1942  Alfred C. and Edna H. Bull, owners 

Vice-President, American National Bank 
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1940  Alfred C. and Edna H. Bull (not listed as owners) 
Vice-President, American National Bank, and proprietor, with Howard W. Bull of 
an insurance and mortgage loan firm located at 203 Norwood Building. 
 

1937  Adolph Goldmann, owner 
  Manager, Nelson Davis and Son, wholesale grocers, 117 W. 4th Street. 
 
1935  No houses are listed on Windsor Road, East. 

NOTE:  Adolph Goldmann is listed as residing at the Alamo Hotel.  He was the 
manager of Nelson Davis. 
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March 7, 2007 
 
 
Steve Sadowsky 
Historic Preservation  
City of Austin 
505 Barton Springs Road 
P.O. Box 1088 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 
Mr. Sadowsky, 
 
Please consider this a valid petition as to the fact that I am against the historic designation 
of my home at 2213 Windsor East Austin, Texas 78703. 
 
If you have any questions please call me at (512) 426-7733. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Carlos A. Tames 
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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ANNOTATED AGENDA – APRIL 23, 2007 
 
A. CITIZEN’S COMMUNICATIONS 

The first four (4) speakers signed up to speak will each be allowed four (4) minutes to address their 
concerns. 
B. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON HISTORIC ZONING CASES 

C14H-07-0005 (postponed from March 26, 2007) 
Bull House 
2213 Windsor Road, East 
Applicant:  Charles Tames 
City Staff: Steve Sadowsky, Historic Preservation Office, 974-6454 
Staff Recommendation: Allow the applicant to deconstruct the house to the extent 
necessary to correct structural problems then rebuild the house on-site with historic 
façade materials; new additions will require review by the Commission. 

 

Commission Action:  Cuppett/Hansen 

Motion: Recommended a  zoning change, from Single-Family Residence (SF-3) district, 

zoning, to Single-Family Residence, Historic (SF-3-H) district, zoning, 

Ayes: Arriaga, Arend, Bunton, Cuppett, Hansen, Limbacher, Mather and Rosato 

Absent: Leary 

Motion carried by a vote of 8-0 
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